
Borough of Bellefonte Council Work Session 
AGENDA 

6:30 – 7:25 PM, Monday, March 3rd, 2025 
In-Person, Large Room,  

301 N. Spring St, 1st Floor 

 VIEW RECORDING OF WORK SESSIONS and BOROUGH COUNCIL MEETINGS       
       Recordings can be viewed on CNET, Comcast’s Government Education Channel 7, or at  

  www.cnet1.org ATTEND IN PERSON.  The meeting room is open with normal occupancy limits.  

I. CALL TO ORDER – Council President Dann

II. WELCOMING COMMENTS / OPENING REMARKS:
A) Welcome everyone to the Bellefonte Borough Council Work Session. No council

action (making motions or approvals) is taken during work sessions.

III. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION:
Note – All Times are approximate
A) Property Maintenance Codes Discussion – 30 minutes
B) Stage at Talleyrand Group – 25 minutes

IV. ADJOURNMENT
The Work Session will be adjourned at or before 7:25 PM. The Borough Council Business 
Meeting is scheduled to start at 7:30 PM.

http://www.cnet1.org/




1 
 

 
 
 
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Business Meeting 

7:30 PM, Monday, March 3rd, 2025 

In-Person, Council Chambers/Large Meeting Room  

301 N. Spring St, 1st Floor 

 

      VIEW RECORDING OF WORK SESSIONS and BOROUGH COUNCIL MEETINGS       

       Recordings can be viewed on CNET, Comcast’s Government Education Channel 7, or at  

      www.cnet1.org ATTEND IN PERSON.  The meeting room is open with normal occupancy  

       limits.   
  

AGENDA 

I. 7:30 PM CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

II.      PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

III.  ROLL CALL 

Mr. Bernier, North Ward  Ms. Purnell, North Ward  

Mr. Brachbill, South Ward  Ms. Sedgwick, West   Ward  

Ms. Cleeton, South Ward  Ms. Tosti-Vasey, West Ward  

Ms. Dann, President, South Ward   Mr. Larson, Junior Council Member  

Mr. Johnson, Vice-President, North Ward   Ms. Meckley, Junior Council Member   

Ms. McKean, West Ward   Mayor Johnson, At Large  

IV. ADDITIONS TO THE COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

In accordance with Act 65 of 2021, If a matter is not on the Agenda, Council cannot take 

official action on it with some exceptions.  The Council can act on matters relating to potential 

or real emergencies.  Council may add a matter of agency business to its agenda through a 

majority vote.  The Council should state the reason why the action item is being added to the 

agenda.  Council may vote to add an action item(s) to the agenda. 

 

V. PUBLIC COMMENT (Oral)  

Borough Council intends to take public comment related to the motion that is on the floor after it 

has been duly made and seconded.  The order of comment will be public comment and then 

council comment including, proposed amendments by council members.  If amendments are 

proposed to the original motion, the public will then only comment on the amendment(s) before 

final votes are taken.  You must be a Bellefonte resident, non-profit representative, business 

owner, or an official representative of another governmental agency. Speakers shall identify 

themselves by name and street, municipality, if outside of the Borough of Bellefonte. Comments 

are limited to three (3) minutes. 

 
 

http://www.cnet1.org/


2 
 

VI. COMMUNICATIONS (written) 
Thank you letter from former resident John Brouse.  FYI, no council action is requested.  

Reminder – community group summit, 6:30PM, Wednesday, March 5th, Oak Room or (Council Chambers if needed),  

301 North Spring Street, Bellefonte. FYI, no council action is requested.   

FERC Notice, Gas line Compressor Work to take place in Centre County, other Counties.  Public comment/participation is 

due by 5pm, March 6th.  Council may vote to comment on the scope of work related to this project.   

Logan Fire Company Banquet Invitation to elected officials. April 12th, 2025. RSVP to Bobbi Salvanish by March 31st, 

2025. FYI, no council action is requested.  
 

VII. CONSENT AGENDA 

All items listed on the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will be acted upon by a 

single motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless members of the 

Council request specific items to be removed for separate action.  
 

General DRAFT Council Meeting Minutes February 18th, 2025 

 

Call for a motion/2nd to approve the Consent Agenda. 
 

VIII. REPORTS 

Please limit all reports/rebuttals/deliberations to three minutes maximum. 

DEPARTMENT OFFICIAL/ 

STAFF 

REPORT 

Mayor Mayor Johnson Verbal 
Jr. Council Member 

➢ February 2025 Report 

Mr. Larson Submitted 

OCA Memo: See memo for report and updates 

➢ The HARB meeting for March 11 will be canceled. The next scheduled 

meeting will be Tuesday, March 25 at 8:30 a.m. 

➢ The Planning Commission meeting for March 10 has been moved to 

Tuesday, March 18 at 5:00 p.m. in the Large Meeting Room.  

Motion/2nd to approve the revised designs of Building 1 (hotel) and 

Building 2 (garage, condo, commercial) of the Bellefonte Waterfront 

Project.  

Ms. Thompson  Submitted  

  

IX. CURRENT and OLD BUSINESS 
Follow Up from Traffic Signal Discussion at February 18th Work Session. 

 

Stamped Asphalt Crosswalks at Airport/Zion and Parkview Blvd/Zion Traffic Signals– PennDOT will permit, but the design 

for both intersections will need to be submitted under a separate Highway Occupancy Permit (HOP) application and be in the 

Boroughs name.  PennDOT will require a letter from the Borough stating that they understand that the Borough is responsible 

for paying for all future maintenance of the crosswalk asphalt material.  Also, that they understand that when the Department 

repaves these intersections, these crosswalks will not be replaced in kind using PennDOT money.  Those conditions will also 

be in the HOP when issued.  The HOP engineering/design costs are not the scope of the borough’s engineer (working on the 

Parkview Intersection) or the School’s engineer (working on the Airport Road intersection) and would be additional fees.   

 

Accessible Pedestrian Signals (APS) pushbuttons will be installed at all locations. 

 

Leading Pedestrian Indicator (LPI) (gives pedestrians the opportunity to enter the crosswalk at an intersection 3-7 

seconds before vehicles are given a green ...) will be installed at the Airport Road crossing.  It can’t be added to the Parkview 

crossing due to the advance left on S.R. 550.  It will be part of the timings for the 550 crossing though. 



3 
 

 

Crossing at Triangle Road – At the work session on February 18th, there was discussion about having a pathway on the 

Triangle Road Right-of-Way, in place of a sidewalk along the South side of Zion Road. PennDOT has given their ok for an 

Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacon (RRFB) light here.  Grant funds can be applied for however, there is no guarantee.  If a 

grant is awarded, there will be a local match.  Fees for the design work, the RRFB, the stamped crosswalk, and the pathway 

on Triangle Road need to be committed.   

 

Motion/2nd to have council’s Streets Committee review these matters and to bring back recommendations.   

Street Paving Street Selection, Budgeted Funds.  Motion/2nd to have council’s Street Committee review staff 

recommendations for the streets to include in this year’s paving project and to bring back recommendations.   

Legal Opinion, borough staff member application for appointment to Shade Tree Commission.  Borough Solicitor Jeff 

Stover’s opinion, based on the position and facts, a conflict of interest does not exist.  Council may vote to appoint  

Mr. Jason Ostroskie to the Shade Tree Commission to fill the current vacancy for the remainder of the term.   

RFP for Grant Writing Services has been issued.  Proposals are due on Friday, March 14th. FYI, no council action is 

requested.    

Signed agreement contract for Section 902 Municipal Recycle Program Development and Implementation Grant received by 

the Borough. Awarded amount $200,000, purchase of equipment can begin. FYI Please see Grants update memo. No 

council action requested. 

Settlement Agreement between the US Department of Justice and Bellefonte Borough: All deadlines for implementation of 

services, ADA training and documentation have been met by the borough ADA Coordinator within timeframes and deadlines 

set forth in the settlement. The borough remains under the settlement until February 20, 2026. ADA training and 

improvements to borough services will be ongoing as outlined in Title II. FYI no council action requested. 

Approval of Ordinance No. 03032025-01 Amendment to Chapter 108: Police Department. Motion/2nd to approve 

Ordinance No. 03032025-01 Amendments to Chapter 108: Police Department. 

 

X. NEW BUSINESS 
Bellefonte Waterfront Property National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit.  Owners notified staff that 

they had inadvertently left their NPDES permit expire.  Riparian zone regulations near waterways had changed after the 

permit was originally issued.  Staff is working with their engineers and PA DEP on a new permit application that may involve 

Borough Authority property downstream of the waterfront property.  FYI, no council action is requested.   

Discussions regarding bike path/walkway to/from former Cerro complex in Spring Township to Talleyrand Park.  Discussions 

are underway primarily through the Happy Valley Adventure Bureau and stakeholders. FYI, no council action is requested.  

Approval of Resolution No. 03032025-01 Amending the Police Department’s updated Policies Vehicle Pursuits 4.2.1, 

Objective Risk Factors in vehicle pursuits 4.2.1.1, Pursuit Decision-Making Matrix 4.2.1.2. Motion/2nd to approve 

Resolution No. 03032025-01 Amending the Police Department’s updated Policies as presented. 

 

XI.  PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ISSUES NOT ON THE AGENDA 
This Public Comment period is for oral comments regarding items not listed on this meeting 

agenda.  Speakers shall identify themselves by name and street, municipality, if outside of the 

Borough of Bellefonte. Comments are limited to three (3) minutes maximum. 

 

XII.    COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS/FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER 

Please try to limit all comments/rebuttals to three minutes maximum. 
 

XIII. ADJOURNMENT 

 The council meeting will be adjourned at or as close as possible to 9:00 PM. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION – Personnel Matters  

The Council Public Comment Policy and the 2025 List of Goals/action items will be included 

with each Agenda.  







1

Ralph Stewart

From: Phil Breidenbaugh <breidenbaugh.p@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, February 19, 2025 9:59 AM
To: boc@centrecountypa.gov; Fritz Smith; david@capperella.com; Ralph Stewart; Edward 

Stoddard; greg@cbicc.org
Subject: Bellefonte Organizational Summit Meeting #1 - Invitation

To: Centre County Commissioners and Leaders at HVAB, Centre County Chamber and Bellefonte Borough, 
 
My name is Phil Breidenbaugh. I am a Bellefonte resident and business owner, member of the Chamber of Commerce 
and Downtown Bellefonte Inc. As stakeholders in the welfare and vitality of Bellefonte I am inviting you to an upcoming 
Bellefonte Organizational Summit meeting planned for March 5th at 6:30 pm in the Bellefonte Borough Building (Oak 
Room) 
 
I began meeting individually with various Bellefonte organizations (below) late last summer in an attempt to organize an 
all-group meeting where new ways of working together might be explored. As a result each of the groups agreed to 
meet together on March 5th.  
The organizations involved are:  
1. Historic Bellefonte Inc 
2. Intervalley Bellefonte Chamber of Commerce 
3. Downtown Bellefonte Inc 
4. Bellefonte Historical and Cultural Association 
 
This meeting is intended to start discussion on how we can best communicate and collaborate as we work within each of 
the organizational missions.  
 
This meeting is primarily a discussion amongst these groups. You are being invited as a stakeholder  and your role would 
be to stay informed of the discussion and provide perspective and observations from your particular viewpoint. If time 
permits, it could be at the meeting, but it will be requested sometime following the meeting. We know that these 
groups benefit from the support and resources you provide and therefore value your input. 
 
Please consider coming to this meeting and  let me know if you plan to attend so I can be sure there is space.  
 
If you have any questions please get back to me.  
 
Thanks 
Phil Breidenbaugh 
717-891-0158 
 





































 

 

BELLEFONTE BOROUGH COUNCIL 

                           Regular Meeting 

  MEETING MINUTES 

February 18, 2025 - 7:30 p.m. 
301 N. Spring Street, Suite 200, Bellefonte, Pennsylvania 16823 

www.bellefonte.net 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER (Council President Barbara Dann) 

The February 18, 2025 meeting of the Bellefonte Borough Council was called to order at 7:30 

p.m. 

 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

 

III. MEMBERS PRESENT  Mr. Kent Bernier 

     Mr. Randall Brachbill  

     Ms. Deborah Cleeton, Pro Tempore   

     Ms. Barbara Dann, President 

     Mr. Douglas Johnson, Vice President- ZOOM 

     Ms. Shawna McKean 

     Ms. Rita Purnell 

     Ms. Johanna Sedgwick  

     Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey 

     Mr. Christian Larson, Jr. Council Member 

     Ms. Jalyn Meckley,  Jr. Council Member- EXCUSED 

     Mayor Buddy Johnson 

   

STAFF PRESENT              Mr. Bill Witmer, Police Chief 

     Mr. Ralph Stewart, Borough Manager 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

IV. ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 

Brachbill requested to move the executive session scheduled for after tonight’s meeting to the 

next scheduled meeting. 

 

Brachbill motioned and Tosti-Vasey seconded to take the Executive session scheduled for 

after this meeting of the agenda. Roll call vote. Motion to move the meeting to March 3, 

2025 carried.    

 

 

V. PUBLIC COMMENT (Oral)  

NONE 

 

 

 

 

http://www.bellefonte.net/


Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

February 18, 2025 

Page 2 

 

 

VI.  COMMUNICATIONS (written) 

Centre County Transportation Update, February 2025. No council action is requested. 

Mill Race Bridge Replacement Onsite Meeting Minutes. Project is scheduled for 2026. No council 

action is requested. 

 

Email - Consider a pesticide/herbicide spray ban for absentee landlords in Bellefonte Borough. 

This item was turned over to Council’s Environmental Committee for review and 

recommendation.   

 

Email -Thank you from Mark Stitzer for the Work Session to discuss the lighting issue in Masullo 

Park. No council action is requested. 

 

Letter - BASD School Directors changed compensation rates for elected Real Estate Tax 

Collectors whose term begins in 2026.  No council action is requested. 

 

Email – Community Groups planning to meet to discuss common issues. The meeting will be held 

at 6:30PM on Wednesday, March 5th in the Oak Room, 1st Floor, 301 North Spring Street. 

Elected officials are welcome to attend. No council action is requested. 

 

Letter - Spring Township is concerned with the Big Spring Well Drilling Project. 

 

Letter – Response to Spring Township from Bellefonte Borough Authority on Exploring the 

Placement of Wells in the expanded area of Talleyrand Park. 

 

Letter-Stage information received on February 14, 2025. 

 

Email Exchange– Borough Authority and Stage at Talleyrand Committee re: Big Spring wells 

project, asking to be put on an agenda, and to have a definitive timeline. Council may take action 

or consider scheduling discussion/action at another time. 

 

VII. CONSENT AGENDA (will be acted upon by a single motion unless otherwise noted) 

Consent Agenda includes the following items: 

1. Finance Budget v. Actual January 2025 

2. Finance Budget v. Actual Summary January 2025 

3. General DRAFT Council Meeting Minutes February 3 

4. General Solicitor Stover Invoice 

5. Finance Treasurer’s Report January 2025 

6. Finance Voucher Summary January 2025 

McKean motioned to approve the consent agenda. Brachbill seconded. Roll call vote. Motion to 

approve Consent Agenda items 1-6 listed above carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yes 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

February 18, 2025 

Page 3 

 

 

 

VIII. REPORTS   

Mayor Johnson  

Mayor Johnson presented a Proclamation - School Resource Officer Awareness Day February 15, 

2025 

 

Mayor Johnson also offered a short report about the Community Action Meeting. He said the 

meeting was a wonderful collaboration of community leaders. He is looking forward to future 

meetings.  

 

Police  (Acting Chief Witmer) 

 January 2025 Report 

 

Paul Miller’s Law (Hands Free Law) 

 

Parking 

January 2025 report 

 

Office of Community Affairs (OCA)/Historical and Architectural Review Board (HARB) 

NONE 

 

Borough Manager  

January 2025 Report 

 

 

IX.  CURRENT and OLD BUSINESS 
 

Shade Tree Commission Volunteer Application. A legal opinion has been requested. No council 

action is requested at this time. 

 

Light at Masullo Park Update. Staff contacted West Penn Power (WPP) about taking out the light. 

WPP said to pull the photo cell. Our staff did that and the light is out. Staff is researching LED 

options. No council action is requested at this time. 

 

RACP Funding for the Waterfront Project. The owners have a Cooperation Agreement with the 

Borough. The owners are submitting new forms to the PA DCED and need Council approval and 

official signing.  

 

Brachbill motioned and Sedgwick seconded for approval of the forms to be submitted to PA 

DCED and to be signed, continent upon all Cooperation Agreements being reviewed and 

updated where needed. It is further motioned that Council strongly encourages the owners to 

break ground on this long-anticipated economic development project as soon as possible. 

Discussion included details regarding the project and funding for the project. Roll call vote. 

Motion carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  no 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

February 18, 2025 

Page 4 

 

 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             no 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

X.NEW BUSINESS 

 2025 Paving Bid opening.  

 

BIDS: 

1. Glenn O Hawbaker  $207,878.50 

2. HRI, INC                    $300,732.55 

3. Wyde                        $189,160.85    

4. Big Rock Paving     $187,512.60  

 

Tosti-Vasey motioned and Brachbill seconded to allow staff to review, make deletions to fit 

the budget, approve the lowest responsible bid. Roll call vote. Motion carried. 

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yes 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

Letter from Chief Witmer requesting Ordinance amendment Chapter 108 Police.  

 

Brachbill motioned and McKean seconded to approve advertising Ordinance amendment for 

Council vote on March 3rd, 2025. Roll call vote. Motion carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yes 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

Approval of Resolution No. 02182025-01 Adopting the Police Department’s updated Policies.  

 

McKean motioned and Tosti-Vasey seconded to approve Resolution No. 02182025-01 

Adopting the Police Department’s updated Policies. No discussion. Roll call vote. Motion 

carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yes 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

Consider Approval of issuing a Request for Proposals (RFP) for Grant Writing Services.  

 



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

February 18, 2025 

Page 5 

 

 

Purnell motioned and Bernier seconded to approve the motion as stated. Discussion included 

clarification of the motion. Roll call vote. Motion carried 6:3.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  no 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          no Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             no 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

Cooperation Agreement Approval. Owners of the former Sutton Engineering property (also 

known as Bellefonte Works) on South Potter Street, received a RACP Grant several years ago 

that is passing through the Borough. Owners are interested in making improvements to the 

property. Owners must have the Borough’s Assistance with this Grant. The Agreement states 

the obligations of the owners.  

 

Brachbill motioned and Bernier seconded to approve the Borough assisting with this Grant 

contingent upon the owners entering into a Cooperation Agreement with the Borough. No 

discussion. Roll call vote. Motion carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yes 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

 

XI. PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ISSUES NOT ON THE AGENDA 

NONE 

 

XII. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS/FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER 

NONE 

 

XIII. ADJOURNMENT   

Brachbill motioned to adjourn. McKean seconded.  Meeting adjourned at 8:32pm.  

 



Junior Council Member Report 
March 3, 2025 

  
- Junior Council Member Report will be provided at the first meeting of every month. 

- Please contact me if you have any questions or topics you would like me to look into. 

School Report: 

- We are about halfway through the third quarter! 

- The Red & White had a special Valentine’s Day release! 

- The Red & White is the high school student newspaper! 

- bahsredandwhite.com/   

- Students completed AAPPL testing to earn their Seal of Biliteracy 

- MAP testing took place this month 

 

Extra Curricular Report: 

- Student Council is holding its first-ever Pickleball Event on March 15th to help raise 

money for Mini Thon  

- Winter Sports are coming to an end soon. 

- Spring Sports have started. 

https://bahsredandwhite.com/


MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:  Bellefonte Borough Council 
FROM: Gina Thompson: HARB, Zoning & Planning Administrator  
SUBJECT: Office of Community Affairs Update 
DATE:  For Council Meeting March 3, 2025 

 
PLANNING: 

 
The Planning Commission meeting for March 10 has been rescheduled for Tuesday, March 
18th at 5:00 p.m. in the Large Meeting Room.  
 
On the agenda will be the review several SALDO projects:  
- Revisions to the submitted Preliminary/Final Plan of Mach-One Clubhouse on 

Sunnyside Boulevard 
- Preliminary/Final Plan for Centre County Community Services Building Parking Lot 

Expansion 
- Subdivision of Ranio Lot on Railroad Street 
 

 
ZONING: 

 
Short term rental renewal permits went out in this mail on Monday, February 25. There 
are 21 total short-term rentals in the Borough. That does not include addresses with 
multiple units. Multi-units are only in the commercial districts and bring the total of short-
term rentals to 24.  

• 7 are in the R-2 Town Residential District (preexisting, nonconforming) 
• 6 are in the R-1 Suburban Residential District (preexisting, nonconforming) 
• 7 are in the Central Business District 
• 1 is in the Waterfront Business District 

 
Ongoing projects include:  

• Addressing zoning inquiries – phone, email, in-person.  
• Processing zoning permit applications 
• 911 Address clean up – downtown commercial and rental addresses mostly.  
• Zoning/Code property checks, outstanding permits, follow-up with maintenance 
• Research relevant zoning laws and suggest zoning amendments and updates as 

necessary.  
 
* update on specific property maintenance issues will be given during the Work Session with 
Walt Schneider, Agency Director of Centre Region Code Administration.  
 
 

 



 
If you have any questions about the current projects, or would like additional information, please do 

not hesitate to contact Gina Thompson at gthompson@bellefontepa.gov or 814-313-1573. 

HARB: 
 
HARB met on Tuesday, February 24. Tom Songer and Peter Laucks from the Bellefonte 
Waterfront Group were in attendance to present the final design of the Waterfront Project, 
including some modifications to the Building 1 (hotel) and revisions of design of Building 2 
(condos, garage, commercial) based on feedback from HARB at the May 2024 and 
December 2024 meetings.  
 
Recommended for approval/the issuance of a Certificate of Appropriateness: 
 
 Bellefonte Waterfront Project 

o Revised Waterfront Development Project design, including modifications to 
the previously HARB & Council approved Building 1 (hotel). Building 2 
(garage, condos, commercial) will have modifications made per discussion 
between HARB and the developer and architect. 

 
Administrative Approvals:  
 107 N. Spring Street (Witherite) 
 231 W. Linn Street (Boylston) 
 125 N. Allegheny Street (Edward Jones) 
 216 S. Allegheny Street (Hazel Plumbing) 
 * 234-247 N. Allegheny Street (Bratton) 
 * 121 S. Potter Street (Witherite) 
 203 N. Spring Street (Bellefonte Presbyterian Church) 

  
* These projects require a building permit from Centre Region Code Administration and 
have been indicated on the issued COA. 
 
The HARB meeting for March 11 has been canceled. The next scheduled HARB meeting will 
be on Tuesday, March 25 at 8:30 a.m., likely to be held in the Oak Room.  

mailto:gthompson@bellefontepa.gov


AGENDA 

HISTORICAL AND ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD MEETING 
DATE: FEBRUARY 25TH 2025 TIME: 8:30AM 

OAK ROOM (SMALL MEETING ROOM), 1ST FLOOR 
301 N. SPRING STREET, BELLEFONTE 

 
Page 1 of 2 

 

 
CALL TO ORDER:  
 
Attendance: 

Members Alternates Guests 
Walt Schneider, Chair Amy Kelchner  
Megan Tooker, Vice Chair Robert Wagner (CRCA)  
Philip Ruth vacancy  
Mike Leakey   
Marc McMaster   
Maria Day   
Gay Dunne   

 
Approval of the HARB meeting minutes: January 14, 2025 
 
Public Comment: 
 
Additions / Corrections to the Agenda:  
 
Declaration of Conflict of Interest / Declaration of Ex Parte Communication:  
 
Project Review:  
 Bellefonte Waterfront Development – Updated project design based on feedback 

given at the December 10, 2024 HARB meeting.  
 
Administrative Approvals:  
 
 107 N. Spring Street (Witherite) - Replace existing asbestos siding shingles with 

identical looking non-asbestos shingles. Siding will be painted to match the color of 
previous siding. Product: GAF WeatherSide™ Purity™ Fiber-Cement Siding Material 
is on recommended list of Preservation Brief 16: The Use of Substitute Materials on 
Historic Building Exteriors 
 

 231 W. Linn Street (Boylston) - Replace north-facing roof on barn along Church 
Lane with shingles to match south-facing side of roof, replaced several years ago. 
Two dormers will be removed and replaced with shingles to match the other side. 
Shingles: Owens Corning Supreme 3-tab, color: Estate Gray. Dormer removal was 
discussed at the 12/10.2024 HARB meeting. There were no concerns with project. 

 
 125 N. Allegheny Street (Edward Jones) - Updated design for current business 

sign. Size: 24” x 36” | Material: Wood | Maker: Fast signs National Accounts | Colors: 
Gray and white. Location: Bladed sign hanging in front of store. Street hanging sign. 
Zoning permit issued on February 3, 2025.  

 

 



Page 2 of 2 

 216 S. Allegheny Street (Hazel Plumbing) - Black flat cut acrylic letters, all caps 
(see application for mockup). Size: 15” x 72” wide. Maker: Gavek Graphics. 
Location: Front of building. 

 
 * 234-247 N. Allegheny Street (Bratton) – Rear north porch/deck: reframe and 

repair; rear south deck: demo and replace. See application for specific details of 
project.  

 
 * 121 S. Potter Street (Witherite) - New doghouse at rear elevation for OA intake 

and new exhaust air louver on left side elevation 
 

 203 N. Spring Street (Bellefonte Presbyterian Church) – Construction of fence 
along south property line, with one 6-foot section of fence will extend 90 degrees 
westward (toward Spring Street). Materials: 4 ft high x 6 ft long panels of black 
powder-coated aluminum, with twin top rails, a flat top and picket bottom. The new 
fence will match the fence installed around the walkway/patio in 2017. All posts and 
hardware will match black color of the panels and gate. 

 
* These projects require a building permit from Centre Region Code Administration and 
have been indicated on the issued COA. 
 
 
Information / Discussion Items:  
 At the February 3, 2025 meeting, Borough Council approved removing the Sign 

Ordinance from our Zoning into its own chapter within the Borough Code. This 
would allow me to more easily modify the ordinance and allow for easier 
enforcement. I still need to look into the process for removing an ordinance from 
Zoning.  

o OCA Memo to Council: I have included this so you can read the rationale for 
the Sign Ordinance request and also information about new businesses in the 
borough.  
 

 For consideration: Adding an “after the fact” application fee for projects that are done 
without prior approval. This fee would be significantly greater than the normal 
application fee.  

o Norfolk, VA: “we require an after-the-fact approval. We don’t have fines, but 
we do have a separate application fee for after-the-fact applications ($15 
regular; $840 for after-the-fact). If work is found to be inappropriate, we will 
recommend that it be removed. “ 
 

Old Business:  
 
New Business:  
 Recommendations for HARB vacancy. 

 
Adjournment: 



 
 

HISTORICAL ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD 
BELLEFONTE BOROUGH 

(DRAFT) MEETING MINUTES 
February, 25th, 2025 - 8:30 a.m. 

Small Meeting Room, 1st FLOOR 
301 N. Spring Street 

Bellefonte, PA  16823 
www.bellefonte.net 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  
The February 25, 2025 regular meeting of the Bellefonte Borough Historical Architecture 
Review Board (HARB) was called to order at 8:30 a.m.  
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Megan Tooker, Vice Chair 
    Maria Day 
    Philip Ruth 
    Gay Dunne 
    Amy Kelchner 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:  Walt Schneider, Chair 
    Mike Leakey 
    Marc McMaster  
 
STAFF MEMBERS:  Gina Thompson, HARB Administrator  
 
GUESTS:    Joanne Tosti-Vasey 
    Tom Songer, BWG 
    Peter Laucks, BWG 

 
Approval of the HARB meeting minutes: (January 14, 2025) 
Ruth motioned to approve the minutes of the January 14, 2025 meeting. Kelchner 
seconded. No discussion. Motion carried.   
 
Public Comment: NONE 

  
Additions / Corrections to the Agenda: NONE 
 
Declaration of Conflict of Interest / Declaration of Ex Parte Communication: NONE 
 
Project Review:  
Bellefonte Waterfront Development – Updated project design based on feedback given at 
the December 10, 2024 HARB meeting.   

• There was extensive discussion regarding the project – clarification of various details 
and features. 

• A 62-slide presentation was presented to HARB that detailed various design 
elements and materials to be used.  

 

http://www.bellefonte.net/


Bellefonte Borough HARB Meeting 
February 25, 2025 Meeting Minutes 
Page 2 
 
Added by Thompson:  

HARB members were impressed by the redesign presented by architect Peter 
Laucks and appreciated the changes made in response to discussions at the May 
2024 and December 2024 HARB meetings. They felt that the architectural features 
complemented the town’s historic aesthetic and that the revisions to Building 2 
created a more cohesive relationship with the Hotel’s design. At the conclusion of 
the discussion, Mr. Songer expressed his appreciation for HARB’s input throughout 
the project, noting that their suggestions contributed to a stronger final design. There 
were some recommendations for minor adjustments to both the Hotel and Building 2, 
which Ms. Songer and Mr. Laucks agreed to incorporate. 

 
Motion by Ms. Day and seconded by Mr. Ruth to approve the updated Waterfront 
Development Project design, including modifications to the already HARB approved 
Building 1 (hotel). Building 2 (garage, condos, commercial) will have modifications 
made per discussion between HARB and the developer and architect. Motion 
approved.  
 

Building 1 (hotel) modifications from original HARB approval:  
• Juliet balconies on three hotel entrances (Dunlop, High, and creek sides) 
• Removal of 2nd floor walkout 
• Add corbels to High St (narrow) side of clock face 

 
Building 2 (garage, condos, commercial) modifications will be made:  

• Railings will change from white to black (developer discretion as to all or some) 
• Window color will change from white to black 

 
 
Administrative Approvals:  

• 107 N. Spring Street (Witherite) - Replace existing asbestos siding shingles with 
identical looking non-asbestos shingles. Siding will be painted to match the color of 
previous siding. Product: GAF WeatherSide™ Purity™ Fiber-Cement Siding Material 
is on recommended list of Preservation Brief 16: The Use of Substitute Materials on 
Historic Building Exteriors  
  

• 231 W. Linn Street (Boylston) - Replace north-facing roof on barn along Church 
Lane with shingles to match south-facing side of roof, replaced several years ago. 
Two dormers will be removed and replaced with shingles to match the other side. 
Shingles: Owens Corning Supreme 3-tab, color: Estate Gray. Dormer removal was 
discussed at the 12/10.2024 HARB meeting. There were no concerns with project.  

  
• 125 N. Allegheny Street (Edward Jones) - Updated design for current business 

sign. Size: 24” x 36” | Material: Wood | Maker: Fast signs National Accounts | Colors: 
Gray and white. Location: Bladed sign hanging in front of store. Street hanging sign. 
Zoning permit issued on February 3, 2025.   

  
• 216 S. Allegheny Street (Hazel Plumbing) - Black flat cut acrylic letters, all caps 

(see application for mockup). Size: 15” x 72” wide. Maker: Gavek Graphics. 
Location: Front of building.  

  



Bellefonte Borough HARB Meeting 
February 25, 2025 Meeting Minutes 
Page 3 
 

• * 234-247 N. Allegheny Street (Bratton) – Rear north porch/deck: reframe and 
repair; rear south deck: demo and replace. See application for specific details of 
project.   

o HARB did not approve this Administrative Approval. Gina will go back to the 
homeowner with HARB’s comments.  

  
• * 121 S. Potter Street (Witherite) - New doghouse at rear elevation for OA intake 

and new exhaust air louver on left side elevation  
  

• 203 N. Spring Street (Bellefonte Presbyterian Church) – Construction of fence 
along south property line, with one 6-foot section of fence will extend 90 degrees 
westward (toward Spring Street). Materials: 4 ft high x 6 ft long panels of black 
powder-coated aluminum, with twin top rails, a flat top and picket bottom. The new 
fence will match the fence installed around the walkway/patio in 2017. All posts and 
hardware will match black color of the panels and gate.  

  
* These projects require a building permit from Centre Region Code Administration and 
have been indicated on the issued COA.  

 
 

Information / Discussion Items: 
• At the February 3, 2025 meeting, Borough Council approved removing the Sign 

Ordinance from our Zoning into its own chapter within the Borough Code. This 
would allow Gina to more easily modify the ordinance and allow for easier 
enforcement. Gina still needs to look into the process for removing an ordinance 
from Zoning.   

o OCA Memo to Council: This is included so members can read the rationale 
for the Sign Ordinance request and also information about new businesses in 
the borough.   

 
Ms. Thompson explained that this would allow her to get a better handle on the signage 
issues, specifically in the downtown Historic District.  
  

• For consideration: adding an “after the fact” application fee for projects that are done 
without prior approval. This fee would be significantly greater than the normal 
application fee.   

o Norfolk, VA: “we require an after-the-fact approval. We don’t have fines, but 
we do have a separate application fee for after-the-fact applications ($15 
regular; $840 for after-the-fact). If work is found to be inappropriate, we will 
recommend that it be removed.” 

 
HARB liked the idea of adding a “after the fact” application fee and will explore this more.  

 
Old Business: NONE 
 
New Business: Recommendations for HARB vacancy. 
 
Adjournment: 
With no other business to come before HARB the meeting adjourned at 10:24 a.m.  



BELLEFONTE WATERFRONT HOTEL 
BOROUGH OF BELLEFONTE

H I S T O R I C  A R C H I T E C U T R A L  R E V I E W  B O A R DB e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t
Borough of Bellefonte, PA

HISTORIC ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD
FEBRUARY 25, 2025



LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t

B O R O U G H  O F  H I S T O R I C

Bellefonte
B e l l e f o n t e  

W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t

366 Walker Dr., Suite 201
State College, PA 16801

110 W. Arch St., Suite 209, Fleetwood, PA 19522

Edward L. Olsen, Jr. 
Architect

539 E. Church Ln. Bellefonte, PA 16823

3075 Enterprise Dr., Suite 100 
State College, PA 16801

403 S. Allen St., #115 State College, PA 16801

2571 Park Centre Blvd., Suite 2
State College, PA 16801



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

Boutique Hotel
93 Guest Rooms
Farm to Table Restaurant
Roof Top Experience

Parking Garage
First Floor Commercial
268 Parking Spaces
Residential Condominiums



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

Dunlop St. Elevation

Building 1 – Boutique Hotel – National Brand
93 Guest Rooms – Farm to Table Restaurant – Roof Top Experience



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

High St. Elevation



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

Spring Creek Elevation



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

North Elevation



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

Hotel – First Floor Plan



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

Hotel – Second Floor Plan



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

Hotel – Third Floor Plan



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

Hotel – Fourth Floor Plan



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

Hotel – Fifth Floor Plan



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

Hotel – Sixth Floor Plan
Roof Top Experience



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

Rendered Image - Roof Top Experience
Looking towards Court House



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

Rendered Image - Roof Top Experience
Outdoor Area



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

Parking Garage - Ground Floor Plan
Parking Entrance and Retail Space268 Parking Spaces



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

Parking Garage / Condo – Dunlop St.



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

Partial Dunlop St. Elevation



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

Partial Dunlop St. Elevation



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

Partial Dunlop St. Elevation



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

Partial Dunlop St. Elevation



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

Parking Garage/Condo – South Elevation



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

Parking Garage/Condo – North Elevation



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

Parking Garage/Condo – Creek Side



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

Building 3 – Dunlop St. Elevation



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

BUSH HOUSE



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

ARMORY



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

BUSH ARCADE



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

BROCKERHOFF



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

FIRST NATIONAL



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

GAMBLE MILL



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

GARMAN OPERA PETRIKIN HALL



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

GARMAN HOUSE



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

SURROUNDING AREA



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

MATERIALS – SIDING: BASF SENERGY SYSTEM 



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

MATERIALS – SIDING: CORDOVA STONE 



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

MATERIALS – SIDING: GLEN GERY THIN BRICK 



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

MATERIALS – SIDING: HARDIE SIDING 



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

MATERIALS – WINDOWS: SIERRA PACIFIC 



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

MATERIALS – ROOFING: GAF SLATELINE 



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

MATERIALS – TRIM: CANAMOULD



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

MATERIALS – RAILINGS: 
PANORAMA BY CERTAINTEED



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C

MATERIAL SELECTION 
BRICK

• Glen Gery Thin-Brick

• Rustic Burgundy

SIDING

• Hardie Plank Statement Collection

• Select Cedarmill

• “Night Gray”

SENERGY FINISH

• Color – Kilim Beige 

• (Sherwin Williams SW6106)

• Finish – Fine

• Color – Patchwood #346

• Finish - Fine

WINDOW

• Sierra Pacific H3

• White Clad Exterior Finish



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C



B e l l e f o n t e  W a t e r f r o n t  P r o j e c t LAUCKS
A R C H I T E C T S ,  P C



           memo: 
Date: March 3, 2025 meeting  
To: Bellefonte Borough Council  

From: Julie Brooks   

RE: Grants update    

      

 

Note: grants typically require no application fee or a $100 fee, the only 
other cost to the borough is staff time for applications and administration. I have 
comple ted these memo items and grant closeouts with additional grant writing and 
management training in the last 2 years. 

February 2025 

February 7-10 Assisted the Nittany Valley Joint Recreation Authority with 
an ex  tension on a DCED grant, they received the extension. Contacted and worked 
with DCED and assisted with grant information, continuing to assist as needed. 

February 13 received signed grant agreement for the 2024 902 Recycle 
Grant, I wrote this grant in 2024. Land was used as a match so there is no cash 
match expected with this funding.I will  begin purchasing equipment: two rounds 
of this funding can be secured for larger equipment purchase.Total received 
$200,000. No cash match required for the first time. 

February 18 received confirmation from MPO that upgrading school zone signs 
on Bishop street to solar school zone signs with radar speed reading for traffic 
calming is eligible for new state Carbon Reduction Program funds. Following 
up  with information to PENNDOT from 2024 TASA application. Other projects may 
be eligible working with MPO and PENNDOT. (Full funding or match TBD for 
this new funding source) total project estimate $38,107  

 February completed application for a capital improvement grant with 
Happy  Valley Adventure Bureau to add ramp to the train station to make it ADA 
accessible (25% match $15,510) total project estimate $62,040 potential grant award 
46,530 .  

November / December 2024 

Completed requests for and was granted 2 6 month extensions for Armory 
building and Baseball field grant to complete work and perform audits.  

Worked with Lori on streetscape payments, worked on information needed         
for all pending grant closeouts. 



 
Completed and submitted one grant application for $1,000,000 for state Local 

Share Account funds working with the Bellefonte Fire department. This application 
required support letters from a large surrounding area and information from the fire 
department, fire department assistance with the application was invaluable and 
appreciated. Award announcement from the CFA is expected in September 2025. 
Grant is for a $2,189,787.00 Pierce Enforcer ladder truck for the department. I will 
follow up with state representatives on this application in March. Additional information 
has been requested from DCED for this application on Feb. 20th. Potential grant award 
$1,000,000. 

Completed and submitted federal FEMA grant application for 1,000,000 with 
excellent assistance and information from the fire department. This grant award would 
be expected around December 2025. Total cost of truck $ 2,189,787. Total potential 
grant awards $2,000,000. 

 
Set up the Community Infrastructure Center grant platform in 2024: this platform 

will benefit borough grant needs in the future by reaching new funding sources. 
Projects are put on the platform and matched with potential funding sources 

 
3 Grants to be closed this year 
3 Grants currently received to be managed  

 
 
Currently seeking funding for: Any items prioritized by council, as directed. 
Traffic signals, Police equipment (information from police department received 
as requested), street lighting, Water (service line and storage), Wastewater 
automation and equipment as needed, Economic development as requested.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 03032025-01 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOROUGH OF BELLEFONTE AMENDING THE 
CODIFIED BOOK OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 108: POLICE DEPARTMENT. 
 
 Be it enacted and ordained by the Council of the Borough of Bellefonte and it is hereby 
enacted and ordained by the authority of the same. 
 
SPECIFIC PROVISIONS 
 
Amend Article III to read as follows: 
 

§ 108-09. Warrantless Arrest. 
 

1. Each police officer employed by the Bellefonte Borough shall follow the 
guidelines established in Pennsylvania Rule of Criminal Procedure No. 441, as 
the same may be from time to time amended, modified and supplemented, and 
any hereafter promulgated Police Department procedures, if any, in making 
arrests without warrant upon probable cause as authorized by 42 Pa. C.S.A. § 
8902(a) .n 

 
 
 ENACTED AND ORDAINED, into an Ordinance this 3rd day of March 2025, by the Council 
of the Borough of Bellefonte in lawful session assembled. 
 
 
ATTEST:      BOROUGH OF BELLEFONTE: 
 
 
_______________________________  ____________________________ 
Ralph W. Stewart       Barbara Dann 
Borough Manager/Secretary     President of Council 
 
 
AND NOW, to wit, this 3rd day of March 2025, the within and above Ordinance is approved. 
         
                                                                         
               __________________________  
               Gene “Buddy” Johnson, Mayor 
        
 
 
  



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-____03032025-1____________   

RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE POLICE DEPARTMENT’S UPDATED POLICIES  

        WHEREAS, the Bellefonte Borough recognizes their legal and ethical duty to provide 
constitutional, safe, and effective law enforcement services to all members of the community; and   

  
WHEREAS, the Bellefonte Borough Council acknowledges the need for clear and concise policies 
for the members of the Bellefonte Borough Police Department pursuant to federal and state law; 
and   
  
WHEREAS, the Bellefonte Borough police department command staff regularly reviews all police 

General Orders, policies, and training to make sure that best practices are being followed, and all applicable 
State and Federal Constitutional rights are properly protected; and   

   
WHEREAS, The Chief of Police and members of the police department are reviewing the 

Department’s policies and related topics. Updates were recommended, then reviewed by an attorney who 
specializes in police policy. The changes include updated terminology and changes based on applicable 
case law and training standards; and   

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Bellefonte Borough Council adopts the 
Police Department’s updated policies, Vehicle Pursuits 4.2.1, Objective Risk Factors in vehicle pursuits 
4.2.1.1, Pursuit Decision-Making Matrix 4.2.1.2, which is effective immediately. The Vehicle pursuit 
policy is amended and updated from resolution 02182025-1. A true and correct copy of the Policies is 
attached to and incorporated into this Resolution as Exhibit “A.” The Policy shall supersede all prior 
Department policies that are inconsistent with the Policy.  Furthermore, the Chief of Police is directed to 
immediately implement the Policy, furnish a copy of the Policies to all police personnel and revise the 
Police Department’s Standard Operating Procedures in conformance with the Policy.   

 DULY ADOPTED this day of 2025 by the Borough of Bellefonte in lawful session duly assembled.   

_____________________               _____________________  
Barbara Dann, President       Johanna Sedwick  
  
  
______________________________     ____________________________  
Doug Johnson, Vice President      Shawna McKean  
  
  
______________________________     ____________________________  
Randy Brachbill        Rita Purnell  
  
  
______________________________     ____________________________  
Deborah Cleeton        Joanne Tosti-Vasey  
  
  
______________________________  
Kent Bernier  
 


	WORK SESSION --AGENDA 03032025
	COUNCIL MEETING--AGENDA 03032025
	COMMUNICATION--Thank you from John Brouse
	COMMUNICATIONS--Organization Summit
	COMMUNICATIONS--Document from United States of America Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
	COMMUNICATIONS--Logan Fire Co Banquet Invitation
	CONSENT--Council Meeting Minutes.02182025.DRAFT
	REPORTS. JR COUNCIL MEMBER--March Report
	REPORTS. OCA--Memo to Council for meeting of 3.3.2025
	OCA Memo to Council for meeting of 3.3.2025
	HARB Meeting Agenda 2.25.2025
	OCA--HARB Minutes DRAFT.02.25.2025 - for HARB
	BWF Design Updates--HARB 2.25.25

	OLD BUSINESS--Memo to council on grants3.3.2025
	OLD BUSINESS--Ordinance No. 03032025-01 Amendment to Chapter 108 Police Department
	NEW BUSINESS--Resolution No. 03032025-01
	Blank Page

